
                                                                 City Hall 
                                                                 117 S. Main Street 

                                                                           Fayette, MO 65248  

                                                                          Ph:(660) 248-5246  

                                                                                                                                          Fax:(660) 248-3502 

 

Tentative Agenda 

November 12, 2024 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Alderman of the City of Fayette 

Fayette City Hall, 117 South Main, Fayette, MO 65248 

Tuesday, November 12, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

C. ROLL CALL 

 

D. ADDITIONS TO AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

ALDERMAN HELD ON OCTOBER 22, 2024. 

 

F. DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT OF GRAFTON COOK AS ALDERMAN 

FOR THE SOUTHWEST WARD.   

 

G. SWEARING IN OF ALDERMAN GRAFTON COOK. 

 

H. VISITORS:  

Anne Schnell - Park Grant 

Caleb Walker - Insurance 

Sonny Conrow - Electric Department 

 

I. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION: 

 

 

J. CITY STAFF REPORTS: 

1. City Marshal 

2. City Clerk 

3. City Attorney 

 

 

 

 



                                                                 City Hall 
                                                                 117 S. Main Street 

                                                                           Fayette, MO 65248  

                                                                          Ph:(660) 248-5246  

                                                                                                                                          Fax:(660) 248-3502 

 

K. OLD BUSINESS: 

 

1. DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF BILL NO. 2024-11, AN ORDINANCE 

AMENDING CHAPTER 405 AND 415 OF THE CITY CODE REGARDING HISTORIC 

BUILDINGS. 

1st Reading by Title Only  2nd Reading by Title Only 

 

2. DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE ON VACATION OF ALLEY 

WAY ON WEST HACKBERRY, JEFF DAVIS. 

 

3. DISCUSSION AND / OR APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE ON VACATION OF ALLEY 

WAY ON 400 BLOCK OF SOUTH PARK, CARLOS NEVELS. 

 

L. NEW BUSINESS: 

 

1. PAY RESOLUTION 2024-22 APPROVING INVOICES FOR PAYMENT. 

 

2. DISCUSSON AND/OR APPROVAL OF SEWER WAIVER FOR 308 W WALNUT. 

 

3. DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF SEWER WAIVER FOR 304 N CLEVELAND. 

 

4. DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF REAPPOINTMENT OF JESSE WILLIAMS FOR THE 

FAYETTE HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD. 

 

5. DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF BUSINESS LICENSE FOR HAIR BY CHLOE. 

 

M. BOARD OF ALDERMAN COMMENTS & COMMITTEE UPDATE: 

a. Stephanie Ford -----East Ward 

b. Ronda Gerlt---------East Ward 

c. Peggy O’Connell---Northwest Ward 

d. Michelle Ishmael---Northwest Ward 

e. Marsha Broadus----Southwest Ward 

 

N. MAYOR’S COMMENTS: 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                                                 City Hall 
                                                                 117 S. Main Street 

                                                                           Fayette, MO 65248  

                                                                          Ph:(660) 248-5246  

                                                                                                                                          Fax:(660) 248-3502 

 

 

O. MOTION TO ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO RSMO CHAPTER 610.021 

(2) LEASING, PURCHASE OR SALE OF REAL ESTATE BY A PUBLIC GOVERNMENT 

BODY WHERE PUBLIC KNOWLEDGE OF THE TRANSACTION MIGHT ADVERSELY 

AFFECT THE LEGAL CONSIDERATION THEREFORE: RSMO CHAPTER 610.021 (3) 

HIRING, FIRING, DISCIPLINING OR PROMOTING OF PARTICULAR EMPLOYEES BY A 

PUBLIC GOVERNMENTAL BODY WHEN PERSONAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE 

EMPLOYEE IS DISCUSSED OR RECORDED; RSMO CHAPTER 610.021 (13) 

INDIVIDUALLY IDENTIFIABLE PERSONAL RECORDS, PERFORMANCE RATING OR 

RECORDS PERTAINING TO EMPLOYEES OR APPLICANTS FOR EMPLOYMENT 

• Employee Review  

 

 

 

 

 

P. MOTION TO ADJOURNMENT: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Posted Monday, November 11, 2024. 



1 
 

City of Fayette: Board of Aldermen Meeting Minutes, October 22, 2024 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF 
THE CITY OF FAYETTE, MISSOURI 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2024 

CALL TO ORDER 

The regular meeting of the Board of Aldermen of the City of Fayette was called to order at 6:00 p.m., 

October 22, 2024 by Mayor Greg Stidham. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Everyone in the Chamber rose for the Pledge of Allegiance led by Alderwoman Ford. 

ROLL CALL 

Roll Call verified five Board Members present for the meeting. 

Responding to the Roll Call:  Alderwoman Ford, Alderwoman Ronda Gerlt, Alderwoman Peggy 

O’Connell, Alderwoman Michelle Ishmael and Alderwoman Marsha Broadus. 

ADDITIONS TO AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Alderwoman Ishmael asked for an addition in new business #7 Discussion and/or approval of Business 

License for Mc. Millan’s Café. 

Alderwoman Broadus motioned to approve the October 22, 2024 agenda with the above addition.  

Alderwoman Ford seconded the motion.  Five voting Aye. Nays – none.  Motion passed. 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

ALDERMEN HELD ON OCTOBER 8, 2024 

Alderwoman O’Connell motioned to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting held October 8, 2024.  

Alderwoman Broadus seconded the motion.  Five voting Aye. Nays – none.  Motion passed. 

VISITORS 

No visitors. 

CITIZENS PARTICIPATION 

 

• Regina Powell - reported that there are some trees that are hanging over in the lines on Watts St. 

 

• Tim Jackman - Informed about a program called lights after School that will take place on 

October 24th on the square. The kids will make lanterns, light them (without fire) and place them 

around the Courthouse for the night. Mr. Jackman asked if he needed City or County approval 

and was informed that he would need approval by the Courthouse. 

 



2 
 

City of Fayette: Board of Aldermen Meeting Minutes, October 22, 2024 

CITY STAFF REPORTS 

CITY MARSHAL DAVID FORD 

City Marshall informed that the incinerator was received by the County and requested the issuance of the 

check for $3,005, previously approved. 

CITY CLERK MATI ROGERS 

Nothing to Report. 

CITY ATTORNEY NATHAN NICKOLAUS 

City Attorney Nathan Nickolaus informed the Council that Jeff Parks’ sign is not in compliance with the 

code. Mayor Stidham informed that Mr. Parks has submitted a form requesting a permit for the sign and 

noted that the building inspector would need to review it before any further action. The Attorney expressed 

concerns about the structure of the sign.  

Mr. Nickolaus also mentioned that the revised sign code is currently in limbo. Alderwoman Ford added 

that the Council had sent it to Planning and Zoning, but no response has been received. 

Regarding home-based businesses, Mr. Nickolaus stated that they drafted an ordinance and was sent to 

Planning and Zoning as well. Mr. Nickolaus noted that the legislative changes now allow home-based 

businesses, however  City’s current ordinance generally prohibits them, so it is not in conformity with 

State law.  

OLD BUSINESS 

1. DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF BILL NO. 2024-11, AN ORDINANCE 

AMENDING CHAPTER 405 AND 415 OF THE CITY CODE REGARDING HISTORIC 

BUILDINGS. 

1st Reading by Title Only  2nd Reading by Title Only 

Attorney Nickolaus explained the different versions of the ordinance. Version E states that 

property owners don’t need permission to do anything except for demolition, and then if the 

permission is not granted, they can wait 90 days to demolish the building. Version C states that 

nobody has to get a permit at any time. Version A states that every building in the historic district 

needs a permit to make any changes to the building. 

Mayor Stidham commented that, since we have a historic district to preserve historic buildings, it 

seems that we wanted to be mandatory that we would provide the property owners with our 

recommendations allowing them to decide what they wanted to do. 

Alderwoman Ford made a motion to approve it, Alderwoman Broadus seconded the motion.  



3 
 

City of Fayette: Board of Aldermen Meeting Minutes, October 22, 2024 

Roll call vote: Ayes: Alderwoman Ford, Alderwoman Broadus. Nays: Alderwoman O’Connell, 

Alderwoman Ishmael, Alderwoman Gerlt. Motion didn’t pass. 

2. DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE ON VACATION OF ALLEY WAY 

ON WEST HACKBERRY, JEFF DAVIS. 

Tabled. Ordinance not ready. 

 

3. DISCUSSION AND / OR APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE ON VACATION OF ALLEY 

WAY ON 400 BLOCK OF SOUTH PARK, CARLOS NEVELS. 

Tabled. Ordinance not ready. 

 

4. DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF SEWER WAIVER FOR 200 W. MORRISON. 

Alderwoman O’Connell made a motion to deny the sewer waiver for 200 W. Morrison because the 

water went to the sewer, Alderwoman Ford seconded the motion. Five voting Nay, motion didn’t 

pass. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. PAY RESOLUTION 2024-21 APPROVING INVOICES FOR PAYMENT. 

Alderwoman O’Connell motioned to approve Pay Resolution 2024-21, approving invoices for 

payment and salaries in the total sum of $145,264.94 which includes, General Fund $79,564.55, 

Electric Fund $33,805.17, Water Fund $13,862.51, Sewer Fund $18,032.71. Alderwoman Ford 

seconded the motion. Five voting Aye. Nays – none. Motion passed. 

 

2. DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF BILL # 2024-20 CALLING FOR AN 

ELECTION IN THE CITY OF FAYETTE ON APRIL 8, 2025.  

Alderwoman O’Connell motioned to approve Bill # 2024-20; Alderwoman Ford seconded the 

motion. Five voting Aye. Nays – none. Motion passed. 

Roll call vote: Ayes: Alderwoman Ford, Alderwoman Broadus, Alderwoman O’Connell, 

Alderwoman Ishmael, Alderwoman Gerlt. Motion passed. 

3. DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF LINE-ITEM REQUEST FOR ELECTRIC 

DEPT. 

Alderwoman Ford made a motion to approve the Line-Item Request for Platform for Digger 

Derrkk, for the Electric Department, in the amount of $7,555.75, plus $400 labor and the freight 

cost. Alderwoman Broadus seconded the motion. Five voting Aye. Nays – None. Motion passed. 

 

4. DISCUSSION AN/OR APPROVAL OF ADDING THE “FRIENDS OF FAYETTE 

POOL” LINK TO THE CITY’S WEBSITE. 

Alderwoman Ford motioned to approve adding the “Friends of Fayette Pool” link to the City’s 

website. Alderwoman Ishmael seconded the motion. Five voting Aye. Nays – none. Motion 

passed. 

 



4 
 

City of Fayette: Board of Aldermen Meeting Minutes, October 22, 2024 

5. DISCUSSION AN/OR APPROVAL OF REQUEST TO ADD BTC BANK AS A 

BUSINESS TO THE CITY’S WEBSITE. 

Alderwoman Ford made a motion to approve adding BTC Bank as a business to the City’s 

website. Alderwoman Broadus seconded the motion. Five voting Aye. Nays – none. Motion 

passed. 

 

6. PROCLAMATION OF VETERAN’S DAY. 

Mayor Stidham said he was invited to participate in the Veteran’s Day at the Fayette High school 

and read the Proclamation. 

Alderwoman Broadus made a motion to approve the Proclamation of Veteran’s Day. 

Alderwoman Ford seconded the motion. Five voting Aye. Nays – none. Motion passed. 

 

7. DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF NEW BUSINESS LICENSE FOR MC 

MILLAN’S CAFÉ 

Alderwoman Ford made a motion to approve the Business License for Mc Millan’s Café. 

Alderwoman Broadus seconded the motion. Four voting Aye. One abstained.  

BOARD OF ALDERMAN COMMENTS & COMMITTEE UPDATE: 

Alderwoman Stephanie Ford - East Ward 

Nothing to report. 

Alderwoman Ronda Gerlt - East Ward 

Nothing to report. 

Alderwoman Peggy O’Connell - Northwest Ward 

Nothing to report. 

Alderwoman Michelle Ishmael - Northwest Ward 

Alderwoman Ishmael reported that the Administrative Assistant position will be open till November 1st. 

Alderwoman Ishmael thanked the city for painting the shelter house at the city park. Alderwoman 

Ishmael also thanked in advance to Police Chief Ford for the Department presence at the Sunday Trunk 

or Treat event. 

Alderwoman Marsha Broadus - Southwest Ward 

Nothing to report. 

MAYOR’S COMMENTS 



5 
 

City of Fayette: Board of Aldermen Meeting Minutes, October 22, 2024 

Mayor Stidham reported that October 15th was CMU Cleanup day, we had 10-12 football players that 

helped clean up around town. Mr. Stidham thanked CMU for that. He also reported that Rickets Lake 

repair is completed. 

Mayor Stidham informed again that Alderwoman Leanna Shiflett – Southwest Ward, resigned on October 

8th.  

Mayor Stidham asked the Attorney Nathan Nickolaus if the term for the appointed Alderman for the 

Southwest Ward will end in April 2025 and then he/she can run to complete the remainder of the term 

through April 2026. Attorney Nickolaus confirmed this is correct. 

Mayor Stidham reported that he met with Main Street and had a conference call with the engineers 

involved and talked about the North main Street sidewalk project that is basically replacing the concrete 

sidewalk from Davis to Elm Street. They expect to complete the project in September 2025. This project 

is an 80-20, 80% MoDot Grant and 20% CID’s paid for.  

Mayor Stidham asked the City Attorney about a company that failed to drill a hole in the main sewer line 

to a house in South Main Street. The sub-contractor of the original company that performed the work has 

billed us, so Mr. Stidham asked if we should pay this bill and go back against the general contractor. The 

City Attorney advised that we must pay the bill even if we decide to take action against the general 

contractor. 

TO CLOSED SESSION 

Alderwoman Ford motioned to move to closed session at 6:59 p.m.  Alderwoman Ishmael seconded the 

motion.  Five voting Aye.  Nays – 0.  Motion Passed. 

Responding to Roll Call:  Alderwoman Broadus, Alderwoman Ishmael, Alderwoman O’Connell, 

Alderwoman Gerlt, Alderwoman Ford. 

Alderwoman Broadus moved to adjourn closed session at 7:37 p.m. and go into open session.  

Alderwoman Ishmael seconded the motion. Five voting Aye.  Nays – None.  Motion passed. 

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes - Alderwoman Broadus, Alderwoman Ishmael, Alderwoman O’Connell, 

Alderwoman Gerlt, Alderwoman Ford. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Alderwoman Broadus motioned to adjourn at 7:39 p.m.  Alderwoman Ishmael seconded the motion.  Five 

voting Aye.  Nays – 0.  Motion passed. 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 Maria Rogers, City Clerk 

 

 

 Greg Stidham, Mayor 













 

Drafter's Note: Deleted text is shown thus. Inserted text is shown thus. 

 

 

Bill No.     ____________-F 

 

Ord. No. 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 415 AND 405 OF 

THE CITY CODE REGARDING HISTORIC BUILDINGS. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Fayette, Missouri as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE. The City Code Section 415.420 (A) is hereby amended by repealing 

said section and enacting one new section in lieu thereof to read as follows: 

 

415.420 Certificate Of Appropriateness — When Required. 

A. A certificate of appropriateness shall be applied for may be requested, before the following 

actions affecting the exterior architectural appearance of any landmark or any structure 

within a historic district may be undertaken:  

1. Any construction, alteration or removal requiring a building permit from the City of 

Fayette. 

2. Any demolition in whole or in part requiring a demolition permit from the City of Fayette. 

3. Any construction, alteration, demolition or removal affecting a significant exterior 

architectural feature or appearance as specified in the ordinance designating the landmark or 

historic district. 

4. Any construction, alteration or removal involving earth-disturbing activities that might 

affect archaeological resources. 

5. Any actions to correct a violation of a minimum maintenance standard. 

B. The owner shall not be bound by the terms of the Certificate of Appropriateness. In 

determining whether or not to issue a Certificate of Appropriateness in this district, the FHPC 

shall be guided by Design Guidelines for the Courthouse Square Historic District.  Such 

Guidelines are attached to this Chapter as Appendix 405 A.  The City Clerk shall maintain a 

copy of the guidelines at City Hall and a copy shall be published on the City Web site. 

 

 

SECTION TWO:  The City Code, Chapter 415, is hereby amended by repealing Section 

415.450 and enacting one new section in lieu thereof, to read as follows: 

 

Section 415.450 Hearing and Determination By The Historic Preservation 



 

Drafter's Note: Deleted text is shown thus. Inserted text is shown thus. 

 

 

Commission. 

[R.O. 2013 § 415.450; R.O. 2005 § 23-344; Ord. No. 00-23 § 2] 

The FHPC may review the application for a building or demolition permit or for a 

certificate of appropriateness and issue or deny the permit within forty-five (45) 

thirty (30) days of receipt of the application.  

The FHPC shall conduct a hearing prior to making its decision.  At the hearing, the 

applicant will be entitled to be present and present evidence.  The applicant may, but 

is not required, to be represented by an attorney.  The applicant may call witnesses. 

The FHPC shall discuss and vote on the application in an open session.  The 

application will considered approved if a majority of the members present vote in 

favor of the approval. In making its decision, the FHPC shall rely on the design 

guidelines for the particular zone.  The FHPC may not consider factors not related to 

design or appearance. 

Written notice of the approval or denial of the application for a certificate of 

appropriateness shall be provided to the applicant and the City Administrator within 

seven (7) days following the determination and shall be accompanied by a certificate 

of appropriateness in the case of an approval. 

If the FHPC fails to act on the application within forty-five (45) days the application 

shall be considered approved. 

The FHPC shall review an application for a demolition permit in any designated 

Historic District and issue or deny the permit within forty-five days of receipt of the 

application.  

i. If the FHPC denies approval to demolish a building, such building may 

not be demolished for a period of ninety (90) days following the FHPC 

ruling. 

ii. A building may be demolished without a permit from the FHPC if it has 

been determined by the Building Inspector to qualify under Section 

415.510 of this Code. 

 

SECTION THREE:  The City Code, Chapter 405, is hereby amended by adding one new 

section to read as follows: 

Section 405.310 Historic Overlay Districts 

B.  Historic Overlay Districts may be created as provided in Chapter 415 

C. Courthouse Square Historic Overlay District. 



 

Drafter's Note: Deleted text is shown thus. Inserted text is shown thus. 

 

 

1. Permitted uses.  All permitted uses allowed in the underlying zoning district shall 

be allowed. 

2. Conditional Uses.  All approved conditional uses in the underlying zoning district 

shall be allowed. 

SECTION FOUR: Effective Date.  

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and approval 

and shall remain in effect until amended or repealed by the Board of Aldermen. 

 

Read Twice and approved by Roll Call Vote 

 

 

Dated this ______day of ____________, 2024. 

      

        

            __________________________ 

     Greg Stidham, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

    Maria Rogers, City Clerk 

 

 



 

Drafter's Note: Deleted text is shown . Inserted text is shown thus. 

 

 

Bill No.     ____________ 

 

Ord. No. 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAYETTE, MISSOURI 

VACATING AN ALLEYWAY ON WEST HACKBERRY STREET. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request to vacate a certain unnamed alleyway located between West 

Hackberry Street and West Walnut Street, between South Linn Street and South Church Street one-half block 

North of Mulberry Street (hereinafter the Alley); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Alderpersons has determined that the said Alley serves no further useful purpose 

for the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, such request has been presented to and approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Alderpersons of the City of Fayette, Missouri as 

follows: 

 

SECTION ONE The said Alley is hereby vacated with the property therein reverting to the property 

owners on either side of the former alley. 

SECTION TWO The City Clerk is hereby directed to file this Ordinance with the Recorder of Deeds 

for Howard County.  

SECTION THREE Effective date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date 

of its passage and approval and shall remain in effect until amended or repealed by the board of 

Alderpersons. 

 

Read Twice and approved by Roll Call Vote 

 

 

Dated this ______day of ____________, 2024. 

      

         

                   _____________________ 

     Greg Stidham, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

     Maria Rogers, City Clerk 

 

  

  



 

Drafter's Note: Deleted text is shown . Inserted text is shown thus. 

 

 

 
 

 



 

Drafter's Note: Deleted text is shown . Inserted text is shown thus. 

 

 

Bill No.     ____________ 

 

Ord. No. 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAYETTE, MISSOURI 

VACATING TWO ALLEYWAYS NORTH OF SOUTH PARK 

AVENUE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request to vacate a certain unnamed alleyway located between South 

Park Avenue and Lake Street, between Knaus Street and Depot Street (hereinafter the First Alley); and 

 

WHEREAS, The City believes it to be expedient to also vacate a certain Alleyway running North from the 

First Alley to Lake Street (hereinafter the Second Alley); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Alderpersons has determined that the said Alleys serve no further useful purpose 

for the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, such request has been presented to and approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Alderpersons of the City of Fayette, Missouri as 

follows: 

 

SECTION ONE The said First and Second Alleys are hereby vacated with the property therein 

reverting to the property owners on either side of the former alleys. 

SECTION TWO The City Clerk is hereby directed to file this Ordinance with the Recorder of Deeds 

for Howard County.  

SECTION THREE Effective date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date 

of its passage and approval and shall remain in effect until amended or repealed by the board of 

Alderpersons. 

 

Read Twice and approved by Roll Call Vote 

 

 

Dated this ______day of ____________, 2024. 

      

         

     _________________ 

     Greg Stidham, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

Maria Rogers, City Clerk 

 

  

  



 

Drafter's Note: Deleted text is shown . Inserted text is shown thus. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 





















































 

BILL NO         

 

ORDINANCE NO. 

 

AN ORDINANCE REGARDING RESTRICTIONS ON 

THE USE VIDEO GAMING MACHINES  

WHEREAS, the State of Missouri and its residents have repeatedly defined 

locations and other restrictions upon gaming facilities and terminals within the state; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Fayette has an interest in regulating the operation of 

gaming facilities and terminals; and 

WHEREAS, the use of “gray machines” or “no-chance machines” have started 

appearing outside of the State of Missouri’s regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF 

ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF FAYETTE, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION ONE:  The City Code is hereby amended by adding one new section to read 

as follows 

210.1170 Monetary prizes. 

(a) No person shall maintain or offer for use by any person any entertainment device 

that offers a monetary prize to any person regardless of the frequency with which a 

monetary prize is conferred or the odds of any individual user realizing a monetary 

prize.  

(b) For purposes of this section, the term "entertainment device" shall mean any device 

that operates for the entertainment or amusement of the operator, whether or not 

manipulated by the operator. The term "entertainment device" includes, but is not 

limited to, any video game or electronic game, regardless of the rules of play. The 

term "entertainment device" does not include any gambling device that is prohibited 

by state law or any device that is necessary to participate in any activity that is 

authorized by RSMo ch. 313.  

(c) For purposes of this section, the term "monetary prize" means any prize in the form 

of cash, check, bank transfer, negotiable instrument, store credit, gift card or any 

ticket or other item that is redeemable for cash, check, bank transfer, negotiable 

instrument, store credit or gift card.  

(d) Penalties.  

(1) Any violation of this section shall be punishable by a fine of not less than 

$100.00 nor more than $500.00 and by imprisonment in jail for a period of not 

less than one day nor more than 90 days. The court shall not suspend the 

imposition of sentence for any violation of this section.  



 

(2) Each entertainment device maintained or offered for use in violation of this 

section shall constitute a separate offense. Where an individual is convicted of 

multiple violations of this section, the sentence for each violation must run 

consecutive to any other sentence for any separate violation of this section.  

(3) A person shall be considered to be maintaining or offering for use an 

entertainment device that offers a monetary prize if the person is the owner or 

lessee of that device or if the person is in charge of the premises where the 

device is found. 

Any person found guilty of a violation of this section shall be sentenced to a 

minimum fine of $500.00.  

SECTION TWO. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval. 

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN THIS _____ DAY OF __________  2024. 

 

            

       ______________________________ 

Greg Stidham, Mayor  

 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS _____ DAY OF __________  2024. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Greg Stidham, Mayor  

  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

          Maria Rogers, City Clerk 

 


